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EUROPEAN COMMISSION 
Directorate-General for Education and Culture 
 
Culture and media 
Culture policy, diversity and intercultural dialogue 
 

 

Version of 2 August 2012 

 
Open Call for tender EAC/09/2012 

Preparatory Action "Culture in External Relations" 
 

REPLIES TO QUESTIONS RECEIVED FROM POTENTIAL TENDERERS 
The following replies to questions received by the Commission from organisations potentially 
interested in submitting bids pursuant to the above mentioned Call for Tender are hereby 
drawn to the attention of all potential Tenderers.  
 
The document may be further updated later in response to any further questions 

 

QUESTION 1 

We would be grateful if you could confirm, on the one hand, that a financial guarantee will be 
requested and, on the other hand, that this would only apply to the selected contractor, rather 
than to all tenderers at the submission stage. 

ANSWER 

As specified in the Notice of Publication (section III.1.1 "Deposits and guarantees required"):  
 "The contracting authority will require the contractor to provide a guarantee to cover the full 
amount of prefinancing". This is also mentioned in the draft contract (section I.4.1). 
A guarantee will therefore be required accordingly. This request will apply to the selected 
contractor. 
 

QUESTION 2 

Are you only planning to commission one project or will you choose a bunch of projects? 

ANSWER 

The objective of this call for tender is to select one tenderer to carry out the services described 
in the Terms of Reference (Annex 1 to the Tender Specifications), in particular in section 2.3 
"deliverables to be produced by the contractor" and section 3.2 "Specific tasks", where a 
detailed description of the scope of the work is provided. 
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QUESTION 3 

Under 1.2 Consortia/joint offers, is a Cultural Institute considered as an economic operator 
that can be on the lead of an alliance that has no legal existence? If yes, and in case the leader 
is designated by all members, we understand that the leader would be the tenderer. Are we 
right? 
 
ANSWER 

A Cultural Institute having legal existence could be considered as an economic operator that 
can be the leader of a consortium that has no legal existence. However, each member of the 
said alliance must have legal existence. 

 
In such case, the tenderer is the consortium and not the leader. Please see section 1.2 of the 
Tender Specifications for further details. 
 

QUESTION 4 

Could it be the culture institute the leader subcontracting to 4 legal competent entities? 
 

ANSWER 

As specified in point 1.1 of the Tender Specifications "sub-contracting is permitted". Please 
refer to this section of the Tender Specifications for the conditions and requirements that 
apply to sub-contracting. 

 
QUESTION 5 

Regarding the selection criteria and in the case of a consortium, shall the Economic and 
Financial capacity 5.1 and the technical and professional capacity 5.2 be provided by all 
members of the consortium?  
 
ANSWER 

Yes, all the documents relating to the "Selection Criteria" shall be provided by all the 
members of the consortium. For more details on all the documents requested, please refer to 
section 1.2 of the Tender Specifications. 

QUESTION 6 

In point 1.2 of the tender specifications it is mentioned that in case a consortia is formed all 
the members must sign a power of attorney to give the Consortium leader the authority to sign 
a contract with the Commission. This power of attorney must be attached to the offer. I would 
like to know if you have a template for such a power of attorney. Does each member of the 
consortium have to sign a separate document with the consortium leader or is it a joint 
document? Do we have to present the original documents or is a scanned version also 
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acceptable? Which information on the Consortium leader and members should be mentioned 
on the power of attorney?  

ANSWER 

We do not provide a template for the power of attorney. The document should contain full 
identification of the entity giving power of attorney and of the entity receiving it, as well as 
the scope of the power of attorney, and it should be signed by authorised representatives. The 
document may take any form preferred by the tenderer (i.e. it may be a joint document or a 
separate document for each entity). Originals should be provided. 

QUESTION 7 

When carrying out the mapping for the ENP countries do we have to cover all the 16 
countries that are part of the ENP? Or can a selection be proposed. 

For the mapping to be carried out of the third countries, do we have to map their strategies 
with respect to the EU only or also with respect to the individual EU Members States and 
other countries around the world i.e. all three options?  

ANSWER 

The geographical area to be covered as specified in point 3.1.2 of the Terms of Reference 
should be read in connection with the specific tasks described in point 3.2. In particular, item 
1 under 3.2 is clear about the fact that the mapping should cover all the countries specified in 
3.1.2. Similarly, it is specified that the mapping "should provide an overview of what has 
already been discussed/envisaged/undertaken/evaluated as regards a strategic approach to 
culture in external relations" in order to "prepare the ground for the consultation process". The 
mapping should therefore allow identifying all relevant existing resources as described in 
point 3.2 of the Terms of Reference in the countries covered by the assignment.  

QUESTION 8 

We have to cover the travel and accommodations expenses of 50 participants in the budget. 
Are these the participants from third countries or the participants from the EU Member 
States? Or will it cover both?   

ANSWER 

The Terms of Reference indicate that the contract should cover the travel and accommodation 
costs of around 50 participants. At this stage it is not possible to confirm the exact number 
and origin of participants to be reimbursed. However, it can be estimated that in budgetary 
terms this should correspond to the travel costs of 50 EU participants. 
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QUESTION 9 

In the case that the offer to the call for tender will be presented in English, I would like to 
know if all the consortium members in that case also have to present all required documents 
in English? Is this also the case for the balance sheets mentioned in point 5.1.2.1. of the tender 
specifications as well as the statement of overall turnover mentioned in point 5.1.2.2. of the 
tender specifications? Do the CVs also have to be presented in English as well as the 
references and past assignments? 

ANSWER 

No. In that case, the consortium members do not have to present all required documents in 
English. 

QUESTION 10  

Regarding Annex 6, "form to be filled in by the tenderer", the form requests the signature of 
“legal representative of the leader of the group”. In the case of a consortium, does this mean 
that the consortium leaders’ representative has to sign off each of the forms submitted by the 
members of the consortium, or should it rather be signed by the person legally representing 
that member of the consortium? 

ANSWER 

Each document must be signed by the legal representative of the leader of the group. 
Nevertheless, if the leader of the group prefers that each annex is signed by the legal 
representative of each member of the consortium, the Commission has no objection. 

QUESTION 11 

Regarding sub-contracting:  

i) if a consortium member is proposing key experts who are not direct members of staff of 
their own organisation, should these be considered as subject to sub-contracting, or can the 
member propose such key experts providing their internal arrangements with the experts are 
covered by a contract?  

ii) Is the rule that if the services represent more than 10% of the value of the contract, then 
they must declare the arrangement as sub-contracting? 

ANSWER 

i) Only if, by contract, the key experts become part of the staff of the organisation that 
proposes them, they are not considered as subject to sub-contracting; otherwise they should be 
considered as subject to sub-contracting. 
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ii) According to the Tender Specifications (point 1.1 "Sub-contracting"), all sub-contracted 
tasks have to be declared. Point 6 of Annex 3 must be completed for each sub-contractor 
proposed to undertake more than 10% of the tasks (by value). 

QUESTION 12 

Les termes de références ne mentionnent pas le nombre de jours sur lesquels la conférence 
doit être réalisée. Ceci ayant des conséquences sur le budget et donc l’offre financière, 
pourriez-vous nous le préciser? 

ANSWER 

A ce stade, il revient à chaque soumissionnaire de faire une proposition dans le cadre de la 
méthodologie qu'il propose. Comme indiqué dans les termes de référence, les aspects 
techniques de cette conférence seront ultérieurement discutés entre la Commission et le 
contractant. 


